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June 26, 1912; 2 P.M.

R. H A R R 1 N G TON,

AFTERNOON SESSION.

J 0 H N

Defendant in court with counsel.

on the stand for further cross-examination.

THE COUR T. You rr.ay proceed.

MR. ROGERS. If your Honor please, by some strange per­

adventure, which 1 am unable to explain, and which calls

for your Honor's intervention, and which 1 ask at this

time, the papers that 1 desire to cross-examine this witness

on have not yet been found.

THE COURT. You nlean tre affidavit?

MR. ROGERS. The affidavi t here in the proceeding about

Foster. It is a most strange thing that the records of this

county, which are required by counsel from time to time,
,

cannot be procured. The law requires that they should be

kept safely in the cus tody of the clerk, and that they

should be available to counsel in any matter in which they

are desirable or necessary. They are necessary to me and I

do not understand why they are not procurable, and I call

your Honoris attention to the fact that i have demanded them

time and again, and that they are not forthcoming, and 1

24 ask your Honoris intervention that those records be pro-

25 I duced. There is no excuse for it. There cannot be any

26 Ipaliation for it, because the County Clerk is supposed to
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Smith, who sits in y,::ur Honor's court, but yet it is a

strange thing 1 cannot get documents that 1 want to cross­

examine this Witness With that are on file in this court

they may be available, and without cr i ticism, and 1 par­

ticularly exempt your Honor's clerk from any negligence,

because there was never a kinder clerk than ~. Sherman

and 1 ask your Honor's intervention that 1 may have them.

THE COURT. Mr. Sher iff, will you ask the coun ty clerk to

come up here, Mr. Lelande. Wait a moment--Mr. Smith tells

me that~. Lelande is not in the office at the present

moment. Who is in charge of filing documents generally?

You go and bring up who is in charge of the filing

department and find out what the tz:ouble is.

MR. ROGERS· 1 will proceed.

THE COURT. Mr. Rogers, the court qUite agrees wi th you,

With your position in.~this a,atter and will furnish you every

facil i ty that is poss ible to produce the papers, and

. 3132 I
documents which are on file in these cases so thatkeep1
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19 I if you desire it will allow you to stop the cr06s-examina-

ticn of thie Witness at this time and proceed With it at.a

later time and furnish you every facility possible under

the circumstances.

NoR. ROGERS. 1 appreciate your Ronorte consideration .in the

matter and 1 appreciate that your Honor realizes--well, we

may say infelicity, to use a mild'J'lord, to have the docu-
~

ment gotten.
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and immater ial •

it u mer the c ir CUIns tances It

such information to the authorities that would enable

A 1 did not only

A 1 spoke to him about

(Document handed-to witness by

down-there at the Ha~vard?

showing caplan up.

Q What do you mean by showing Caplan up? A Giving

as a lawyer had a right to impart it?

them to find out where Cap Ian was.

Q Did you understand that a lawyer receiving information

1ffi. ROGERS. 1 will go on with the cross-examination of the

witness. What did you ask Darrow with reference to Caplan

think it was right but 1 thought it was his duty to impart

THE COlffiT. Letts not use any strong language until we

hear froll! the clerk.

Q Did you--where did you get that law?

MR _ FORD- Just a moment--we object to that as irrelevant

THE COlffiT. Objection sustained.

MR. ROGI!~RS. 1 will show you a docunent and ask your perusal

of it and the n 1 will ask you some ques tions •

THE COURT. Perraps counsel on tte other side would like

to see it fir st.

MR • ROGERS. Yes, sir.

counsel. )

MR. FORD. No question has been asked yet?

FR • ROGERS. No, 1 am asking his perusal of. the document.

(W i tnesB examines document .)
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1 MR. ROGERS. Q Is that a correct account and statement of

2 the telephone conversation between you and Darrow on the

3 morning of February ~th, 19121

4 I :MR. FORD. If your Honor will look at the docunJent, we wish

5 to make an objection that the question is irrelevant,

6 incompetent and immaterial, and e~cially incompetent, and

7 ca:lling for hearsay i the methods provided for in the ex-

8 amination of a witness as to a transaction is to tell what

9 he has seen or what he has heard i you cannot --the examinat' or

of the transaction or not. This witness has testified--

defendant, MJ. Darrow.

THE COUR T' Let me see the docunlent.

NiR· FORD. --to a telephone conversation had with the

THE COURT· Now, 1 have heard the objection, ~i;r. Ford, and

1 will exa~mine the document, if that is what you ask me to

What is the quea-

must be conducted by question and answer, you cannot exhibi

to him a documen t made by somebody else who perhaps he does

not even know and ask him whether that is a correct stateme t

THE COURT· (After examining document. )

tion?

(Question read.)
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THE COURT· 1 will hear you, ~,tr. Fogers.



purports to be a stenographic account of a conversation,

and ask him if that is n~t a correct relation or a correct

statement of the conversation; one does not need to pick

up a paper and saYJ"did you not say thus and sO,did you

not say thus and so or not?"
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MR ROGERS: Now, if your Honor pleases, one maw ,ShOW What313t

7 THE COURT: Let me go back to the original statement,

8 does this purport to be a stenographic account?

9 MR ROGERS: I have not asked him what it purports to be.

10 THE COURT: You made your statement in argument, "what

11 purports to be a stenographer account of the conversation. 1t

12 MR ROGERS: That is in argument only, sir. I asked him if

13 that is not a correct relation of the telepho~ic conversa­

14 tion that occurred. That is the sane thing as puttitlgit

15 to him and reading it to him. If your Honor desi res to
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take the time, I will read it to him and ask him "did you

not say thus and so,did this not happen,or that not happen?

I can do that very readily, sir, if you desire me, but I

~ asking him if that is not a correct statement of the

conversation as it occurred'- It does not admit the docu-

ment itself,no matter if he says yes or no, then I must

read it.

23 'MR FORD: If the Court please, this document could not,

24
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26

under an¥ circumstances, be introduced in evidence; it is

a fugitive piece of papel1 concerning which we know abso­

lutely nothing, we do not know who Mr Touhy Qis, we don't
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1 know whether he is a stenographer, we don't know whether

2 it was \~itten at that time or whether it has been written

3 at this time.

4 THE COURT: I think, over the objection,You have to adopt

5 the ot-her method, if you Y.ant to. Obj ection sustained.

6 M"R ROGERS: I have not asked to introduce it. I take an

7 exc ept ion. Is this not the conversation that occurred on

8 the morning 0 f the 20th of February ,1912, between you and

9 Darrow. Did you not answer to ~:fr Darrow's inquiry, "is

10 this 437? Yes" and then did not M'r Darrow say to you,

11 "Say ,J"ohn , I ms working until 6 o'clock last night and I

12 called up at a quarter to six and you y,ere not there. I

13 don't believe you can keep from testufying on that ground.

14 Now,s~J,about the other matter; I am indicted and you are

15 subpoenaed this morning, and we couldn't afford to have any

16 financial tran saction at this time. If I am ovving you

17 anything on the old deal I will pay you vhen these matters

18 are disposed of. Don't you think that is best?" And did

19 you not then replY,"Yes". Then did not Mr Darrow say to

20 you, "I am not feeling ve~ well todaY,and if you cannot

21 get me here when you want me, call me at the house."

22 .And did you not then reply, ItAll right. It Then di d not 1.rr
;

23 Darrow say, ItGood bye", and then did you not say,"good bye lt ?

24 A That does not properly represent the conversation that

25 took plac e.

26 Q Did not that €OCact conversation,word for word and
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1 line for line occur between you and Darrow over the tele-

2 phone, you in room 43'7 and he at n:tY' office,on my ex:change?

3 A No sir.

4 Q Did you know that there were four people on that line

5 at the time that conversation occurred?

6 1\Iffi FORD: Obj ec ted to as irrelevant and innnaterial, and

7 not cross-examination. If counsel has any witnesses he can

8 produce them at the proper time.

9 TEE COURT: Obj ection sustained.

10 lJR ROGERS: What did you ask Darrow at the Hayward,about

11 lfrscaplan? A As to where shev,as and he ought to show

12 her up.

13 Q, Are you giving the exact words? A No sir.

14 Q, Do the best you ceJl, to give the ex:rot words. A I

15 dolh him I thought it was his duty to tell where she was.

16, tell the authorities where she was, that he knew.

17 Q What did he say to that? A He says,"I don't know

18 where she is at present. She was in Cleveland, the last

19 time I heard of her."

20 Q 'What did he say about the \"lhereabouts of David Caplan,

21 or Willimn Caplan, as he is sometimes knovm? A I do not

22 recall that we spoke about Caplan himself.

23 Q Didn I t you sey this morning that you cane out here

24 to inquire of him where Caplan was? A Schmidtie and

25 Caplan.

26 Q, Yes ,now when you reked him about -m.ere Caplan was, wh
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1 did he say? A I don't recall what we said about Caplan.

2 Q Is your memory poor on that subj ect? A I say I can't

3 re~all what ','fe said about him.

4 Q Did he say anything?
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THE COURT. Overruled.

3139

We will

repetition is merely don for the matter of argument.

MR. ROGERS. Now he says he doesn't remember. It becomes

per tinent to ask him.

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

Q Why weren't you sent out here to ask him the question

as to where Caplan was?

MR. FORD. Just a rnoment--we object upon the ground that

the question has been asked a number of times and the

A Yes, si r •

MR • ROGERS. Q Then why is it you don 't remember what he

replied to you? A Because 1 don't recall it.

Q Is your memory good?

MR. FORD. Objected to upon the ground the question has

been asked and answered not three minutes ago.

THE COUR T. 1 am inforrr'ed by the Cl erk that ne i ther llr.

A Fairly 60.

MR. ROGERS. Q Then tell me anything that he said to you

about the whereabouts of David Caplan when you asked him

where he was or if he knew where he was? A 1 don't

Q. Are you afraid to recall? A No, sir; not a bit.

Lelande or his deputy 1.1r. Wilson have returned.

ment when we were usill?;the other court rooni.

know it w.hen they return. See if 1 have this right so far,

Mr. Smith. These files were first presented in this
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2

THE CLERK.

THE COURT.

Yes, sir.

The matter was then transferred by me to

31~

Judge I
3 ~~llie, the presiding judge and the papers went over there?

4 THE CLERK. Yes, sir.

5 THE COUR'l'. He heard it?

6 THE CLERK. Yes,s ir •

7 THE COURT. Then what was the next thing that happened to

8 those papers?·

9 THE: CLERK. . The paper s wer e sen t back to me.

10 THE COURT. And What did you do with them?

11 THE CI.ERK. Took them to the County Clerk.

12 THE COURT· And gave them to Who?

13 THE CLERK. Mr. Wilson.

14 THE COURT. And that is the last you have aeen of them?

15 THE CLERK· Yes, sir.

16 THE com T. Tl:e papers were intact at that timeT

17 THE CIJERK· Yas, air.

18 THE COURT. 1 don't see how we can move very well until

MR • ROGERS. No, sir, your Honor may in terrogate him. 1

will take his word.

Mr. Harr ington, you

You wish to have i!.r. Wilson sworn?may step as ide.

we get Wilson. iv1r. Wilson ie here.

THE COURT. Mr. Wilson, there are Borne papers in the matter

of the conten~t of Robert J. Foster, the papers were first

filed in the court room of Department 11 when Department

11 was in'session in the other court room in the Hall of
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my information from l,fr. Smith, the matter was then transfer­

red to Presiding Judge, JUdge Willis, who heard the matter.

The papers were then returned by the Clerk of Ju'dge Willis'

departnjent to Mr. Sherman Smith, the clerk of this depart­

ment, and he has just now informed me that they were handed

to you, and 1 have sent for you to inquire where those

papers can now be found.
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Jus tice. The matter was then transferred, according to

he did. 1 don't really remember at the time he says he

handed a couple of more papers with those and 1 have been

I

91
10

11

MR • WILSON. If Mr. Smi th says he handed them to me, no doub

12 I search ing for thes e papers, the Fos ter papers for con-

THE COURT' Did you'tring them over from the other court

tempt of court, put in about a day, and 1 haven't been able

to locate them.

THE COURT. At what time were those paters delivered, :,11'.

THE CLERK. 1 couldn't tell that. 1 remember the incident

Smith?

of bt i:r..ging theIr" over and what was s aid when 1 brough t them

over.

room or take them down from here?

THE CLERK· 1 brought them over from the 'other court room.

TPE COUR T. Well, the inc ident mus t have occurred ten days

at two weeks ago.

THE CLERK. When we get through with papers, which accumu­

lates for a certain time, 1 bring them over here and file
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they ever came back from the court room where Ur. Foster w

MR. WILSON. 1 am not sure, no •.

314~

Have you any Sj'Stem of indexing contempt pro-

It is almost imposoib1e--l do not say it is

They must be found; they are absolutely eesen-

them.

THE COURT.

men t •

TEE COURT

ceedings there, Mr. Wilson?

~ffi. WILSON. ijaven't any index.

~'HE COURT. Not indexed under that?

.lIF, • W1LSO N. No, sir •

THE COURT Pave you considered the possitility of your

having put those contempt papers away in the files with

the other papers you were handling at that time?

MR. WILSON. We thought of that and we looked back for a

MR • ROGERS. Do you know anybody that does know whether

series of 15 days back to see if we could locate those

papers in the cr iminal depar truent or in the 0 ther depar t-

impossible, because that has not yet appeared, but it will

be very difficult at least to get copies or duplicates if

indeed it can be done at all, so 1 shall have to instruct

you at this time to lay aside all other business and

devote the force of the clerk's office to hunting those

tial to the business of this court that they be produced.

MR. ROGERS. Are you sure, ;.',r. Wilson, that they came back

from the hearing at which Mr. Foster was present?

papers.
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1 preaentand had his hearing?

2 MR. SMITH. Yes, sir, 1 know it.

3 MR • ROGERS. You know they did?

4 ME. SMI TP • Yes, sir.

5 MR. ROGERS. Then they Vlere taken over to the clerk's

6 office?
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I

12

13

MR • SMITH. Yes, air.

MR • ROGERS. Has anybody inquired for those papers up

un til this time?
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(

1 MR WILSON: Not that I kriow of ,no si r.

2 Q You would not say you dontt know?

3 MR '\VILSON': I dontt know, they were noti.,ncpired of me.

4 THE COURT: Will you make inquiry mlong all the desk

5 clerks' down there and asc ertain vlhether or not there has

6 been any inquiry for those papers by any person.

7 l!R APPEL: I would not imagine t your Honor ,1\/[r Foster and
\

8 his attorney, probably his attorn~ would have 8 copy of

9 those papers, he was entitled to be furnished with a cOpy,

10 and probably he also has a copy of his answer.

11 THE COURT: lit is also possible that the attorney who was

12 ; appointed may have copies.

13 }!R APPEL: I will state that there was special counsel

14 appointed, to prosecute the case.

15 THE COURT: I think Mr Leonard Slosson was appointed in

16 that regard.

17 l!R APPEL: It is POssibl~f1e may have the papers.

18 THE COURT: Ur Wilson ,you may take the matter up with 1fr

19 Leonard Slosson. and 'Nith his, 1fr Fosterts attorneYt 1fr

20 Georg e P. Adams, and make eveIT effort to find t)le originals

21 which is most desirable ,but failing that, to have the

22 record restored by copies. And spare no pains or attention

23 on that matter, llfr Wilson. Gentlemen, that is the best I

24 can do.

25 ]JR ROGERS: Yes sirtyour Honor has done all you can•.

26 If the papers have been. abstracted they are gone,or have
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1 been lost,that is the end of the papers.

2 THE COURT: You are entitled to any indulgence that
I

3 suggests itself to you in regard to the cross-ex6mination

4 of the vdtness at this time.

5 M:R ROGERS: Come around to the stelid and I will indulg e

6 mys elf a little further.

7 THE COURT: I me an in reg~rds to d elay, Mr Rog ers.

8 MR roGERS: Oh, yes sir.

9 THE COURT: In rEgard to delay, to take the matter up later

10 if you so desire.

11

12 I JOBlif R. l!J..RRINGTON, resumes the stand for

131 further cross-examination,

I ,. about Sc)1midtie
14 ,1.fR ROGERS: Now, why is it you remember what he said/, and

15 I cannot remember what he said about Caplan? A I cannot,

16 explain.

17 Q Why. cannot you explain?

18 J..ffi,FOF.D: We obj ect to that upon the ground that the

19 question answers itself.

20 THE COURT: Objection overruled. A I have IX) answer

21 to make to that; that mswer is final, that I cannot ex­

22 plain,or I cannot recall it.

23 11.R ROGERS: Now, v.es there anything else you asked Darrow

24 about besides the whereabouts of Schmidtie end the where-

26 Q, What? A Well ,I told him about the conversation on

25 cbouts Of Caplan? A Yes sir.
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Anything else you can remember at a1ltt~at you referred

his porch, also about the conversation. about ~fuat took

place the morning of Franklin's arrest.

was gone over a gooq dea1J~~ spoke about it,and it took up

more time than you and I take up with it now, but that vms

the gist of the conversation.

Q He deni ed them both, di9n't he? A Yes sir.

Q Well now, something else, that you spoke to him about.

A I do not recall.

Q, Well now, that is all you can remember? A That thing

There might. have been

No sir:

A

A

You have given us the gist then of the whole interroga-

tion thaty:ou made of Darrow?

Q

to in your questions to hiW?
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recall it now? A If you ~ou1d refresh my recollection I

would be very glad to answer any qu estions you p1ac e.

Q would the dic tagraph notes takEn at the time possibly

your memory serves you? A

something e1s e.

Yes sir.

A I do not recall.Well, what is !l.t?

Are you likely to remember anything later? A I might.

I s there anything that we can do to assist you to

We11,you have given us the gist of it,then,so far as

Q

Q

14

15 !
16 I Q,

Q,

17

18

19

20

21

22

23 refresh your recollection? A I don't know that they

would.
24

25

26
Q You don't know that th~would? A No sir.
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1 Q Or wouldn't a so-called shorthand reportof what

2 happened at that time help you out some?

3 lJTR FORD: We o1::d act to that 0 n the ground it is irrelevant

4 and immaterial; the section of the code provides the

5 manner" in which things of that sort can be used, and the

6 whol e mat t ar has 1:e en di spo sed of by thi s Court.

7 M"R ROGERS: It bes not been disposed of, in vi ew 0 f the

8 late answer of the vii tness, which chenges the vhole situa­

9 tion.

10 THE COURT: Obj ection overruled.

11 A What is the question"please ?

12 ( Quest ion read.)

13 A It might not.

14 1.{R ROGERS: It might not,but,might it? A I don't mow.

15/ Q It co uld be possible II though, that the shorthand notes

16 I taken of the conversation might aid you in your recollec­

17 tion?

18 :MR FREDERICKS: That is obj ected to as immaterial; on

19 the further ground it ,vas gone into yesterday on cross-

20 examination, hhe identical questions were asked the wit-

21 ness to vm.ich he made ana wers they might, end they might

22 not refresh his recollection, identi<£'ally the same ground

23

24

25

26

that was gone over yesterday.
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314r)

MR. ROGERS. If your Honor please, a wi tness who would

2 answer--may 1 be pardoned for suggesting it--a witness

3 who would answer that a so-called shorthand transcription

4 I of the statements made at the time would not ~'refresh his
be .

5 recollection would not/worthy of credence, even as to his

6 own name.

7 MR. KEETCH. He did not so state; he said it might or

8 might not.

9 MR. ROGERS. Might or might not. A shor thand report of

10 the conversation which might not refresh his recollection

would be a most absurd Witness and the Witness who is in-

tentionally false--

13 MR. FORD· 1 would like to make just one statement. The

14 Witness stated he didn't know whether a dictagraph would

15 refresh his recollection. Now, it may be he has testified

16
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231

24 1

251
I')r. I

_v I

I
I

to everything tha t occurred there and if the dictagraph

repor ts would not show anything addi tional it would not

refresh his recollection; if it shows something addi­

tional to what he has testified here then it is manifest

it would refresh his recollection. The witness has testi-

fied to all he now remembera about that transaction. Now,

if there is anything additional that the dictagraph would

show, of course, it would refresh his recollection; if it

does not show anything additionaf it would not refresh his

recollection and the Witness. h:ls answered in tl:e only way

he could answer, it might or might not.

I
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Q Well, you have seen part of that, haven't you?

MR • FORD. Vie object to that on the ground that question

MR 0 ROGERS. Q Did it refresh your recollection, any of

A Yes, sir.

notes before 1 could make an answer to that.

those that you saw?

MR • FREDF;RICKS' That is objected to--we ask that the an-

has been answered yesterday and gone into fully.

THE COURT· Objection overruled.

THE COURT. Strike it out. 1 didn't hear it.

MR • FREDERICKS. That is objected to unless the time and

place is referred to.

MR • ROGERS. He has said he saw them, that is the time

1 am speaking of When he saw them, did they refresh his

swer be stricken out.

MR. ROGERS. Let us try it.

THE COURT. 1 have not any doubt about the correctness of

the ruling on this natter, but 1 am not going to interfere.

With counsel making his record on it. 1 think he ought

to have his question. Answer the question.

A What is the question?

(Ques tion read. )

A 1 would have to know something about the shorthand

recolfection any?

MR • FREDF:R lCKS. He may have seen them at other times.

THE COUR T• ov err ul ed •
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- 31~
1 do not recall that 1 did, if my memory was fresher

2 at the time.

3 MR. ROGERS' Q Is your memory any worse now than it was

4 when you looked at the dictagraph transcript? A 1 can't

5 say thatit is.

6 Q Then would you be willing to look at the renlainder

7 of the dictagraph testimony and see if it might perchance

8 refresh your recollection?

9 MR· FORD' Objected to as imnlaterial whether he would be

10

11

12 I

13
1

14
1
I

15 I

I
16 I

willing or not.

THE COlffiT· Objection sustained.

MR • ROGERS. Q Don't you knoVl, as a matter of fact, that

if the dictagraph transcript is correct of the conversation

it would refresh your recollection as to what happened?·

MR • KEETCH. 0 bjected to upon tte ground it is argumenta-

. tive •

THE COURT. What is the objection? Read it.

(Objection of ~. Keetch read.)

MR • ROGERS. Q Don't you know, as a matter of fact, that

if you were shown a correct transcript of the conversation

between you and Darrow that it would reffesh yourrecol­

lection?

MR. KEETCH. The same objection.

MR. ROGERS· That is a matter we are entitled to.

THE COUR T. Objec tion sus tained •

Objection sustained.THE COUR T.

24 I
25 I

26 ,
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TEE COUR T. Objection sus tained.

immaterial, because the answer either way would not

affect the issues.

3151
1

MR • ROGEr:S. An exception. Q Do you mean to say that I
if you saw a transcr iption of what happened between you

and Mr. Darrow there, word for word, taken down correctly

at the time and written up by competent stenographers,

hearing what was said, that it would not refresh your

recollection? You said it might or might not.

MR • FORD. Objected to as argumentative and absolutely

1

2

3

4' I

5

6

7

8
I

91

10

11 MR. ROGERS. Exception. Q Now, if there should be right

in that box there within your reach, a correct transcrip­

tion of the conversation between you and Darrow, and you

may take it up and read it over, sitting where you now sit,

don't you think that it would enable you to testify with

greater a8curacy to what happened and what was said?

17 MR. KEETCH. Objected to as argumentative, incompetent,

18 irrelevant and immaterial.

19 THE COURT. Objection Bustained.

•MR. FORD Objected to as not a proper question to

address to the witness.

20

21

22 I
23

r,m. ROGERS. Except ion.

all that 1s true?

Q Aren't you willing to tell

24 THE COUR T. Objection sustained.

25 MR. ROGERS. Now, if ycur Honor pleases, 1 demand again

26 the transcription or at least the shorthand notes of this



the purpose of aiding his recollection. and refreshing his

We have gone

conversation that the witness says he does not

men;ory .We want the truth of tte matter.

31~
recall, for

4' into the conversation in good fai th. We have interrogated

5 him as to what he said. We have interrogated him as to

6 what Mr. Darrow said, and his memory begi ns to grow r emark-

7 ably weak and aenemic and it gets shaky in the

8 knees and therefore we want him to refresh his recollec-

9 tion from the docun,ent right there in front of us, telling

10 us what was said at the time.

11

12

113

14

15 I

16 1

171
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20 I
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1 We want the jury to have the whole truth and ~t a part of

2 the truth, not memory which is fallible or not a memory

3 which is f81~cious, &ld not memory which is intentionally

4 faultY,therefore in the aid of truth and justiee, we ask

5 your Honor toc;ive us those transcriptions, if they EIre

6 reliable, and the shorthand reporters took them down, in

7 order that this man may tell us just what he said, and

8 what Darrow said at that time. We don't want a garbled

9 account of it. We v.'ant the truth of it ,and this jury wants

10 the truth of it,and there is nothing in the world but an

11 attempt to suppress evidence and keep from the jury the

12 truth and the facts that keeps that box closed, 8nd this

13 witness' mouth closed,and his mind a blank, and I say it

14 is an outrage upon justice ,that we should stand here in .

15 this court room,sir, with the aid that this witness may get.

16 I your Honor pleases, from \~at they claim to be a correct

17 . transcription of those notes,and thatconversation,and .

18 having him say, ttI don't remember." Now.you can pick up

19 your ink bottle.

20 11R FORD: The Court please, we ask the Court to take notice

21 of the language used by counsel reflecting on the prosecu­

22 tion and couns el on the opposite side.

23 MR APPEL: If it is true,we_are not to

24 MR KEETCH: I call your Honorts attention

25 lfR roGERS: Yes sir ,I stood here yesterday and I saw-­

26 THE COURT: !{r Rogers ,ai t dovm.
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1 MR ROGERS: Yes sir,I ,viII sit down and I will assign an

2 error in a moment.

3 TEE COURT: I will hear you at all t~es.

4 JIR ROGERS: Yes sir.

5 TEE COURT: .And I think patientlY,as long as you confine

6 your r~larks to the matters before the court. It is amazing

7 to me, en a rgumeht as able .as the one :rou have just pre-

8 sented should be spoiled, in a measure, by the last clause.

9 lI.R ROGERS: If it offends your Honor I ,lfJish to '.vi thdraw itt:

10 before we go any further,and I apologize to your Honor.

11 THE COURT: Letts go back to the issue that is involved,

12 which is the demand, -m.ic h un der the ci mumst aIle es has been

13 made.

14 MR RoGERS: I appreciate, your Honor pleases, you very

15 great kindness to me, at all times. I appreciate the fac t

16 I that your Honor has recognized that I came into this court

17 after seven months being studiously in a courtroom under

18 the M-rdest possible circumstances, Md with my nerves not

19 8S calm as I would like to have them; and your Honor has

20 been, as you phrase it, ~azingly kind to me, and not for

21 the world would I offend your Honorts sense of decorum,

22 nor would I transgress your Honorts kindness in the matter,

23 and if I have offended your Honor, I apologize to your

24 Honor, fo~ I appreciate more than I care to attempt to say,

25 your Honor's great kindness to me, and your charity to me,

26 in view of the facts, es I s~, I have been seven months
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1 in the court room t and I am pretty well worn out. I am

2 very much vorn out· nervously, and at times I do go beyond
beyo}ld

3 what I ought to go, if your Hono~ please,endjwhat your

4 Honor knows I would go if I had a little time to rest, a

5 little time to recover my nervous condition. I apologize

6 for the last remark; it was improper,end I appreciate now

7 that I have made it ,and I apologize to your Honor because

8 of the sense that I bear of your Honorts great kindness to

9 me in this matter, and if that is sufficient, I hope so,

10 if not,I stand resay to accept your Honor tS reproof or

11 your punishment, as you see fit to give it to me.
I

12 'THE COURT: Very difficult for the Court to reprove or

13 punish under the circumstances, but the important thing

14 Iheretgentl emen , is, and the only important thing here in

15 Ithe trial of this case, 8nd I fully appreciate the strain

16 of counsel, but ~~ only lose time and make it harder on all

17 parties concerned, to have these little slight emotional

18 outbursts from time to time. Now letts come back to the

19 question. I assume that Mr Rogerts remark will be amende

20 honorable between counsel,end that counsel ask nothing

21 further,e~d I shall take it for granted that is the case.

22 Now, as to the daland, under the circumstances t does the

23 district attorney obj ect to that demand?

24 U

25

26



documents before the trial is closed?

would be prejudicial to the best interests of the public

We do so, your Honor, not for

You avow your intention of producing these

31 561
We decline uflon the ground that any writtenMR. FORD-

THE COUR'l'.

to disclose at this time.

communication concerning what occurred at the Hayward

Hotel between this witness--

THE COURT. Mr. Ford, 1 will have to ask you to rise when

you address the court.

MR. FORD. 1 beg your pardon--l th ink that is proper; 1

should arise, and 1 usually do. We decline to give any

written documents in our possession upon-the ground that

they are not competent evidence and that they are written

communications made to us in official confidence which it

the purpose of suppressing evidence but for the purpose

already stated in this court.

MR. FORD. If the Court please, under Section 1881, this

is merely a written communication and we could not intro-

d~ce it if we wanted to. If the occasion arises to pro­

duce witnesses as to what occurred at the Hayward Hotel,

they will be put upon the stand by us; but it makes no

difference, we couldn't offer it, it would not be admis­

sible.

MR. ROGERS' 1 submit that is not a fair answer.

T~~ COURT· The attorney for the defense has openly charged

an atten~t to suppress evidence, which 1 do not think that
the District Attorney would, for

7s 1
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1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

and your objection to producing the document at this time

1 assume to be an objection to presenting the docuuentfor

inspection, or such use that they may properly be put to

at this tirr.e, but at a later time in the trial when the

public interests will not suffer by it you expect to

in troduce it, is that the s i tua tion?

MR • FREDF;R leKS, It is our intention, your Honor, if pas-

sible, under the rules of evidence, to put befor e this.
jury every th ing that was taken down or may have appeared

in any way as a record of what occurred at the Hayward

Hotel. Now, it is our intention, if it is possi ble under

12 the rules of evidence, to do that.

13 MR. ROGERS' That being so, if your Honor please, we are

en ti tIed--

THE COURT' That puts at an end the suggestion that any-

thing is being suppressed.

17 MR. ROGERS. We are ent-itled to see it now because here is

an a ctor in the conversation and here is a man that we

are entitled to cross-examine at that time and use it as

a rr.emorandum for cross-examination for his benefit. He sa~1

I,
he does not recall, He says he does not remember. Ther e-

fore, if they intend to produce this docun'ent under the

23 rules of evidence, if it is accurate, if it is sUbstantially,

and can be r el ied upon, then we ought to have it now in

order to cross-examine this witness and refresh his recol-

1 ection • 1t rr;ay be, per chane e, from wha t he has said that

22~ I
t>i

26 !

I
!
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1 it is not all there. It may be that it is not accurate.

2 It may be that by showing it to him we may refresh his

3 recollection and he will say, No, that is not right, and

4 fronl the mere inaccuracy of it he may be able to refresh

5 his recollection.

6 THE COURT. Well, now, Mr. Rogers, we spent all day yester-

7 day arguing on this question.

8 MR • ROGERS. 1 t is a different .si tua tion now.

9 THE COURT. You have changed the situation somewhat, but

possess ion.

their notes which they took a t the time and then cross­

examine him Vii th them. That is not a document in their

1 am still of the opinion that the right of the District

Attorney, the order in which he shall present his testimony

will not be interferred with by the court,. and in the

face of his avowal that he will present it at a later time

you can take leave, if you VI. ant to recall this witness for

fur ther crosa-examination in the light of that document,

and 1 be I ieve that is as far as the cour t may go.

MR. ROGERS. Then we will call the shorthand reporter, if

we ar e corr ec tly ~advised, and demand the production of
\

MR • APPEL. What we are trying to do is this, to preserve

the rights of the defendant in knOWing the whole case agaiBst

him, or the def endant should be put on the stand or called

upon to present any evidence, then the whole rr;atter comes

out on cross-examination, when it is permitted to come out.

I
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Now, if any other document of any kind in my
· 315881

poesesslon or

anybody's possession taken under the directions of this

witness at the time the conversation occurred, there would

be no difficulty in asking for them in order to refresh

the mell10ry of the wi tness. ?Jow, as to the rights of the

District Attorney--

THE COURT. Gentlemen, 1 am well satisfied. We spent a

The objection of the Dis-day in argument yesterday.

trict Attorney is sustained.

MR. APPEL. We tak e an exception.

MR • ROGF;RS. We ask leave to praent Mr. Leo Longley and

lli. 1. Benjamin on this stand with a subpoena duces tecum

to present their notes and to demand the transcription of

the notes for the purpose of enabling us to cross-examine

need to read it, but your Ronor should read it before

1 do not know that 1

this Witness and refresh his recollection. 1 call your I

Honor' 6 attention, 60 far as the order 0 f proof is concern11,

to the language in the case of People versus Schmitz in

I
I

!

I
I

I

California Appellate 7 at page 362.

r ul ing on it.
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1 THE COURT: The order of proof is undoubtedly within the

2 sound disc retion of the Court.

3 llR ROGERS: No~so far as rebuttal on the main case Ols

4 conc erned.

5 THE COURT: I am not assuming that the evidence suggested

6 by the District Attorney \rlll be delayed until rebuttal.

7 The District Attorney has not yet closed his case.

8 MR ROGERS: I would request your Honor to inquire whether

9 he eA.'})ec ts to produc e it in his main case or in rebut tal.

10 He has told the court he intends to produce it, if the

11 rules 0 f evidenc e wi 11 J:e rmit. He said the other day he

12 was going to hold it until after the defendant testified,

13 as a threat over his head.

14 THE COURT: I did not hear any such statement, ],,fr Rog ers.

15 1!LR DARROW: Your Honor, that was stated several times by

16 Mr Ford, that they were going to keep it until after my

17 testimony, and then if there was something in it that con­

18 tradicted the testimony th~ would introduce it.

19 UR KEETCH: 1fr Ford only put that in a hypothetical manner.

20 MR ROGERS: I ask your Honor to look at the 7th California

21 Appeilate.

22 THE COURT: It did not impress me to that extent.

23 MR FORD: Your Honor does not care to hear from us?

24 THE COURT: Yes,! 'Will ask you a question,if you ecpect

25 to produce this document in yourcase in chief?

261m FREDERICKS: We have not yet determined, your Honor.
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1 We are try~ng our side of the case, trying to try it

2 accll7rding to the roles of evidence,which are sometimes

3 more of a hindrance than the,y are of a help, but whatever

4 they are, they are.

5 THE COURT:- I quite agree with you there.

6 MR FREDERICKS: And we are trying to start our side of the

7 case,so as to get the entire matter before the jury, if

8 we can.

9 THE COURT: I think there is nothing before the Court at

10 this time.

11 MR ROGERS: There is a demand to place Leo Longley and
I

12' I .13enj amin upon the stand and produc e their not es, for the

13 purpose of c ross-examining this wi tness with them, in

14 I order to refresh his recollection,the witness having stated

15! that he does not recall certain material and vital matters.
!

16 j 1,fR FO'RD: To which we obj act ,on the ground that such method
I

17 I
of procedure,for the purpose of refreshing the recollection

18 of the vii tness is contrary to the Code of Civil Proc edure,

19 and the provision of section 2047; that it is not one of

20 the methods provided for by section 2047 of the Code of

21 Civil Procedure,and for that reason is irrelevant, incom­

22 petent, and immaterial. I want to be sure about that

23 section.! think it is 2047.

24 UR ROGERS: 2047.

25 MR FORD: .And that it is simply an EU'fort to evade the rnl-

26 ing of the Court heretofore made upon the same subj act.
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1 MR ROGERS: Oh, no.

2 THE COURT: No, I think it 11' esents quite a different

3 question.

4 1JR FORD: We obj ect to it upon the g round that. the only

5 method "in which the witness' memory may be refreshed' is

6 from notes made by himself, or under his direction, at

7 the time,when the fact odcurred,or immediately thereafter,

8 or at any other time, when the fact was fresh in his

9 memory, and he knew that the same "Was correctly stated in

,/ 10 the vrri ting, and that no proper foundation has been laid,

11 to show that this docLunent referred to would refresh his

12 recollection,and,further, that there is no law compelling a

13 witness to resort to their memory or to inspect other docu­

14 ment for the plrpose of refreshing their memory; and

15\ further, thati t would be absolutely impropEr for the. witness·

16 to refresh his memory bylistening to vrhat somebody else
if.

-17 might have said upon the subj EC t ; further, that7i t is done

18 for the Plrpose of impeachment, that the time for putting

19 on impeaching testimony has not yet arrived. Counsel have

20 laid a foundatinn by asking him all the things that occurr­

21 ed at this conversation; they have asked him many things

22 which he has denied. Some things which he has admitted.

23 Now, if by ~y of defense they wish to show that this \rlt-

26 and let those witnesses testifY what had occurred and those

;,.

24 ness has not told the troth they vlOuld then have a right i

25 to call any witnesses who were present at such conversation
.' -:..
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1 witnesses in testifying would be allowed by your Honor to

2 refresh their recollection from notes taken by themselves

3 at that time.

4 THE COURT: I want to read that 7th .Appellate )and I\vill

5 take a· recess for fitteen minutes. Have you got it there

6 handy?'

7

8

MR ROGERS: Yes sir.-,

THE COURT: Gentlemen of the jury, bearing in mind your

9 former admoni tion. We will take a recess for 15 minutes at

10 this time.

11
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ton for furtrer crol:ls-examination.

since the case corcnenced, Since the--l carr.e here about the

indicate it will be allowed--but if it should be allowed,

316~

.
A Pardon me. 1 wasn't here

The defendant has delLanded the right

(After recess,)

of the defendan t.

ur bs ? Ayes., s ir •

Q Did you see an ar ticle--

MR. ROGERS. Satisfactory.

MR. ROGERS. Q Mr. Harrington, were you in the city here

at all times since this case commenced, and by the city

1 mean Los Angeles and its immediate surroundings and sub-

a t this time to put upon the wi tness stand two shor thand

repor ters, whom 1 asaume to be the shorthand reporters

who took down the dictagraph conversation. The District

Attorney has objeatred and that objection is sustained

at this time, but if it shou·ld transpire that when the

District Attorney offers i to close his case, the diatagraph

transcript has not been produced, then the def endant is

given leave to renew this offer to put the shorthand

r epor ters on the witness stand, and if the offer should

at that time be allowed--the Court does not at this time

THE COURT' The Court is now ready to rule on the demand

then the right will follow, of course, to call :·ilr. Harring-

think 1 was her e all dur ing tba t time.

Q Did you read an article in the Los Angeles Examiner
/xy

25th of May.

Q Well, since the taking of evidence commenced? A 1

I
I
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1 headed ttl will convict Iarrow by my dictagraph.

3164

R. J.
I

2 Foster."

3 MR • FREDERICKS· Objected to upon the ground it is

4 I immater ial •

5 MR. ROGERS. Prel iminary •

6 MR. FREDERICKS· Not crose-examination.
v

7 THE COURT. Rverruled.

8 A Yes, sir; 1 dontt know that it was headed that, but

I read auch an article over.

Witness, irEelevant and mJiaterial.

paper.

Objected to as calling for a conclusion of theMR • roRD

v

THE COURT. Rverruled.

A I presumed it was the same Foster that 1 met in

~ylr. l.awlerts office. 1 thought so at the time 1 read the

Q You read it? A Yes, sir.

Q Did you know what H • J. Fos.ter that was?

MR • FORD. Objected to aa calling for a conclusion of the

Witness as to what Foster meant by it. Objected to on the

further ground that no foumation has been laid showing

that Foster ever did have such a conversation, and even if

he did it would be absolutely immaterial what motives

MR. ROGERS. Q Now, wha t was there in the dictagraph

conversatIon held between you and Darrow to which he

referred, "1 wi] 1 convict Darrow by my dictagraph. R. J.

.Foster." If you kn ow.

9

10

11,
12 I

13

14
I

15 I
I
I

16 I

17

18
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22 I
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1 promp ted him.
3165 ·1

2 THE COURT. Objection sustained.

3 MR. ROGERS. Q What did Darrow say in that dictagraph

4 I conversation 0 ther than you have given us 7 AIr emember

5 now that i'Are Darrow asked me if 1 expected to be indicted.

6 1 told him 1 did not and he asked me if 1 was scared of be-

7 ing indicted. 1 told him not. He then asked me about a

8

9

10

11

conversation that 1 had with detective Stanley in San

Francisco, in which Stanley offered to remove Mrs.

Ingersoll from the state of Illinois or else have her

testimony changed--

state of lllinoia--

A State of California, and we spoke about the time that

Mr. Darrow sent me to see Stanley inthe Palace Hotel in

San Francisco. He reminded me that he sent me and it

12

113

114

15

16

MR. FORD. Pardon me--the witness has used the words,

ceedings, and he asked me if 1 thaugrt there would be any-

thing fur ther to that, about sending me out to Ingersoll's

house for letters which 1 got and about ;',;r. Ford subpoena-

ing me before the grand jury afterwards and asking me if

was proper. He sent me there to get some information

from Stanley and he told me that he afterwards heard that

Stanley made the remark that 1 offered him money there and

1 denied that, and that was about the substance of that

conversation.. And then we spoke about the contempt pro-

17

18

19
I

20 I
21

22

23 I
I

24 ,

251
I 1 offered Ingersoll $5,000 and an automobile. 1 told

2G
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there was nothing to that at all and the District1

----------------------'-"-~ ,

316" I

Attor-

2 ney, 1 presu'Ile, saw there was nothing to it because he

3 never followed the natter up at all.

4 I MR. ROGERS. Now, read that answer.

5 (Last answer read by the reporter.)

6 A Then 1 remember telling itir. Darrow .that 1 thought he

7

8

91
10

11

12

13

ought to Bee the District Attorney and do the best he could

with him and not to be phe only one in the case that suffer-
,

ed. There were other people in San Francisco and other-

where that had a great deal to do with this case and that

he ought to try to get out of it as best he could.

Q What did he say to that? A About see ing the Dis tr i ct

Attorney?

14 I Q PI ease read the witness his las t answer.

(Last answer read by the reporter.)
15

16 I Q About just what you said in ycur last answer. A He

said, of course, that he like to get out of it.

migh t come to me later.

Q He was then under indi ctment? A Yes, sir.

Q When you s aid there were other people in San Francisco

A 1 don,t recall any more. It
17

18

19

20

21

22

Q Was that all he said?

and elsewhere, whom did you refer to.'? A 1 had in mind

23
1

24 I

25 J

26 I
I
I

the San Francisco people that were interested in the

McNamara case.

THE COURT. Mr. Rogers, let rr:e interrupt you •. There is

another matter here 1 want to take a moment or two on.



2 retain him here?

3 l,iR ROGERS: I do not wish, a.fter your Honor has ruled,I

--3167l
1 THE COURT: I see:M:r LOngley is in Court. :Do you wish to I

4 do not wish to do anything that savors of too much persis­

5 tence in the matter,but now that he is here I would like

6 to ask him if he has the notes of the so-called dict~raph

7 conversation E.nd if he will produce them in a7rder that we

8 may--

9 THE COURT: In the Court's rulin~ the Court assumed that

10 he did have the notes, andof course, if sworn as a witness

11 he would prodnce them. You can take that for granted;
I

12 I that is assumed in the Court'S ruling.
I
I

13 ' MR ROGERS: I would like to interrogate him whether he has

We will stipulate that he has the notes,

14 , them or not.

15 I UR FREDERICKS :
I

16 i and I am quite sure he has.
I

17 THE COURT: That settles it.

18 ~JR ROGERS: Your Honor's mling is, if they close without

19 I maycall him? 1fr Longl ey ,you are not going to 1 eave

20 the ju rlsdiction of the Courttl

21 MR LONGLEY: 1fr Roge:~s, and if your Honor please, as sp~ial

22 examiner in the United states Court case, the United

23 states against the Southern Pacific,I an due to be in

24 san Francisco on ne~t MOnd~ to continue the taking of

25 testimony, which has occupied some time more than a month;

26 the time 1~thin which the Government may conclude the tak-
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1 ing of' testimony is about to ex:pire, and if by a sUb­

2 aervience to the sUbpoenae under which I am at present

3 here now,or \nthin the next d~ or t'NO,I could accomplish

4 my duties as a witness in thiscase,so that I could be in

5 San Francisco Monday mornin"(, I would like very much to

6 have that done.

7 THE COURT: The Distric t Attorney inf'orms me he expects

8 to close within a week.

9 MR FREDERICKS: I doubt very much if' I will be able to.

10 THE COURT: At any rate,YOu will be available f'or the rest

There is another reporter who was \nth

going away, and 'M'r Longley told me he vri.llcome down on a

11 of' the week?

12 /1!R LONGLEY: Yes sir.

13 I ],fR FREDERICKS :
I

14 ! !fr Longley, the def'ense
I

15 ! I saw him at noon.and I
I

16

has not got the name correctly.

know he will be here, he is not

17 day's notice.

18 MR ROGERS! That won't subserve the case. If']Jfr Longley is

19 going aNay and they, perchance)oshould close ,I Rnow the

20 matter to which he ref'ers, if he goes to San Francisco on

21 Monday-

22 ].fR LONGLEY: I expect to go to Sen Francisco Saturday night

23 MR ROGERS: If' you go on Saturday night you vlill be in San

24 Francisco ~or some considerable time.

25 tfR LONGLEY: The estimated time is a week or ten days, the

26 testimony to be taken'[ is f'or a week or ten days.



2 here at night ,and be here f'or a day ,any way?

3 It \"lould be a great inconvenienc e, but -the Court regrets

4 I to lllt you to such inconvenience.

If' it becomes mB:} essary,. you can, come down1 THE COURT:

_________________--'...c...;c--.-----

31~
,

5 MR LONGLEY: Yes sir,if' I could testif.y to whatever the

6 parties desire I would be very glad to do so.

7 THE COURT: It may develop that you can, but not today,

8 Mr Longley.

9 :Am LOlWLE'f: Well, that is my engeg ement,if' your Honor

10 please, I an due to be in San Francisco next Monday morn-
I

11 ling at 10 o'clock.
I

12 THE COURT: The Court will bear that in mind, and the Court

13 will admonish couns el that the conv eni mCe of' 'Jili tnesses is

14 to be taken into consideration.

15 MR FREDERICKS: We have it in mind.

16 MR LONGLEY: May I be excu'sed?

17 THE COURT: For a day, and until you have furthernotice.
I

18 Il[R FREDERICKS : I understand Mr Longley wants to get EIllay

19 lSaturday night?

20 lIR HOGERS: We can settle this matter in tYIO minutes,if'

21 your Honor please~if' Mr Longley will sit down and trans­

22 c!"ibe those notes and produce them to your Honor,so that
i

23 \"le can use them to cross-exmline this Witness, 1!f.r Longley

24 can 0'0 to San Francisco and take the case of' the Unitedo

25

1

Stetes vs

26

1

content.

theSoutherh Pacif'ic Company to his heart's



and the Court,vnthout interferring '~th the pocess of the

1

2

UR FORD: We will endeavor to accommodate ]!r Longley

31~

I
3 trial, and in pursuance of the Courtts order.

4 I THE COURT: The matt er will be adJjrusted between now and

5 Saturday morning, othe~!{ise it will be taken up Saturday

6 morning.

7 UR ROGERS: I mow that l,r Longley is a busy man ,he cannot g

8 away under the Courtts subpoenae, and I will call him

9 when opportunity serves.

10 THE COURT: All right.

11 ],!R LONGLEY: !lay I ask your Honor,in view of the fact that

121 llr 1,fcConnick, United States Attorney, ~!r Mills ,Special

13 1 Assistant Attorney General of the United States, and the

14 I attorneys on the other side, a number of witnesses sub-

15 I poenaed to appear before me as commissiner or special
I

16 examiner,next Monday morning) for the convenience of all

17 I those people,may I not pro}B rly ask that some arrang aments

181 be made by which I could definitely notify those poople,Bo

191 as not to inconvenience them?

20 I
21 I
22

123

241
I

2'"' :oi

26 ,

I
i

i
i



THE COUR T.
3~

The Dntrict Attorney has just stated he is

2 satisfied that a means can be arranged, and 1 have no

3 doubt it can be done.

4 MR. FREDERICKS. We had a talk wi th Mr. Longley today at

5 noon in regard to the ~atter and 1 think there will be no

6 difficulty about it.

7 THE COURT· If there should be any difficulty you might

8 report here at 10 0 I clock Saturday morning and the

9 matter can be adjusted then, unless some other disposition

being Special Uni ted States Examiner, that lS to say,

taking testimony in a land case, according to my recol­

lection of the law he is not SUbject to the orders of the

THE COURT. But unless you hear something to the contrary

you will be here Saturday morning at 10 o'clock.

MR • LONGLEY. Saturday morning.

THE COUR T• Yes, s ir •

MR. ROGERS. How are we going to do anything with thE

MR. IJONGLEY. 1 realize that.

Mr. Longl ey has to go to San Fr anc lSco, he

Of course, you are under

matter?

is made of it, Mr. Longley.

subpoena.

10

11
1

12

13

14 :

15 I
I

16

17

18

19

20

21 I

22

23
1

2~1 I
25 j

I

26 I
I

I
I

court in the case up there and we cannot get him back.

1 am enti tIed to these no tes, 1 am en ti tIed to the trans­

cript, 1 am;entitled to it for the purposes, according to

your Honor's ruling, of cross-examining this witness, and

1 can see no reason, if it is coming before the conclusion

of the case, why 1 might not have it
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1

The only exception is a

1 \'II ill s tate to the court in regard to

Already under subpoena. He is Special

THE COUR T. He is aIr eady under subpoena.

wi tness wi th •

this dictagraph stuff, we have a well defined idea'of what

MR • FREDERICKS

to ;i~r. Longl ey •

MR. ROGERS.

Fxaminer, he is exempt.

we want to try to do with it.

MR. LONGLEY. 1 think 1 ought to state-_I think 1 ought

to state to you in addition to what 1 have already said

in open court, that my duties as Special Examiner in that

case, that is, the United States Court, following the

point of law on which Mr. Ford and 1 differ, and we have

been try ing to corre to the same conclus ion on that point of

law and we probably will. Things are shaping themselves

right along the line that will obviate any inconvenience

testimony which will be taken in San Francisco, my duties

18 I ,however they may confl iet with my duties as a witness

1

2

s 3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 \
I

16

17

here, may require me to go to New York and Oklahoma.

THE COURT. 1 think it will be arranged some 'Nay. I

MR. I,ONGLEY .1 feel it is due to your Honor and the gentle~
men on both sides to state that that may be the result.

THE COURT. If you are to give testimony it will be taken

Saturday morning.

MR. ROGERS. May 1 suggest another thing before :~ir. Longley

19

20

21

22 I

23

24

25
I

26 I
I
i
f
!

leaves the room? 1 don,t wish to say anything that may
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1 reflect, therefore, 1 do not mention any names, but the

2 other repor ter who was also taking notes, whom your Honor

3 may have in mind, as 1 underatand, was unable to pass the

4 cour t examination and is not a compe tent repor ter as is

5 Mr. Longley, and 1 woul d 1 ike to exam ine Mr. IJongley and no t

6 the other man. From many' years experience at the bar, more

7 than my very youthfUl appearance would indicate, 1 have

8 great confidence i-nj Mr. Longley, and 1 have not a bit of

9 confidence in soms other-reporters that 1 might name, and

10 1 would like to have Mr: Longleyt s report.

11' THE COURT. There has been just one other name mentioned

and that was the name of Mr. Benjamin.

MR • ROGERS, Mr, Benjamin, 1 understand, is not the man.

1 understand 1 am mistaken in the name of the man.

THE COURT. No question about ?!ir. Banjarnin?

MR • ROGERS, Not a bi t in the wor ld, 1 have known Mr.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Benjamin for 30 years,

THE COURT, All right, 1 guess that matter is clear then.

You may proceed with the examination.

MR, LONGLEY, And am 1 excused until Saturday aorning?

THE COURT' You are excused until Saturday morning unless

otherWise called, unless there is objection; so ordered.

MR. ROGERS, Q Now, you said people in San Francisco and

Whom across the bay from San Francisco did you refer to?

from San Francisco.

Aaross the bayAWhere else did you mean?elsewhere.



1

3114
•MR. FREDERICKS Objected to as being immaterial to the I

2 issues to who he referred,. someone else asidefrom i,ir.

3 narrow, nothing to dowith this case.

4 I MR. ROGERS He said he told Mr. Darrow he better make

5 peace, -Ie t son,ebody else suffer in San Francisco and

6 elsewhere. Now, he says acrosathe bay from San Francisco.

THE COURT· The objection has been withdrawn.

1 want to know whom he meant across the bay from San7

8

91,
10

Fr ancisco.

MIt • FREDER leKS 1 will Vii thdraw the obj ec tion "

11 A I didn't say to let anybody else suffer; 1 didn't us e

12 I that expression.
!

13 MR. ROGERS· Well, when you referred to people across--

14 in San Francisco and elsewhere, and said that you meant by
I

15 I elsewbere across the bay from San Francisco, whom d'i d you

i16 I r ef er to? A Mr. Johanns en"

17 1 Q Anyone else? A No, sir"

18 I

19

20

21 I
22

23

24

25

2G ,
I

I
I
I



377S I
1 THE COURT: '!If.r Roger~, before you come back to this cross-

2 examination, I intended to call your attention to the

3 fact that the doclunent was handed me in the last few mo-

41 ments and purported to be, and which I pt"esume are,copies

51 of the contempt proceedings in the Foster matter. r will

6 hand them to you at this time. I have not had a time to

7 examine them,but I presume th~ are correct copies.

8 1lr Clerk,You handed me doclunents purporting to be copies

Wilson,in the last few minutes I

9 of papers in the Foster contempt proceedings. ROVl were

10 I those papers obtained. Ur

And[ you have been still unable to find the

They were obtained from MrSlosson as his

A Yes sir.

THE COURT:

copies?

THE COURT:

source were those papers obtained?

have been handed docrunents PJ.rporting to be copies of the

papers in the Foster contempt proceedings. From what

11

12

13

14YR 'WILSOll: I rang up lIF'rSloss~n,.attorneyfor lEr Foster in

l k II t

16

u I the Foster case, and asked him if he had copies of he

originals left up here,and he told me he had,and I asked

him if I could come dovvn and get them,and he told me I

could, and I went down and got them.

17

18

19
1

20 I
21 I

22 originals?

23 }"rR WILSON: Yes sir.

24 THE COURT: You will still continue the search for the

originals in the meantime. Under the circumstances I think

we may deem these copies to be true copies and proceed



1 accordinglY,unless the contrary should appear.

·317~
I think

2 it \'\Ould perhaps be well to fasten them together and mark

3 them for identification.

4 I MR FREDERICKS: Not in this case. They are not matt ers in

5 this case. I understand that th~ are simply some docu-

6

7

8

9

10 I
11 I
12 .

ments that have nothing to do vJi th this case, ex:c ept

counsel wants to use them to cross-examine the witness,

the same as the ne~paper.

THE COURT: Well, all right.

MR FREDERICKS: I don t t think the papers have any bearing

in this case.

MR ROGERS: I don,t want any question about it.

13

14

15

THE COURT: I think you are right.

UR FRH:DERICKS: No ques tion about their authenticity.

I haV'e never seen them.

read that?

llR FORD: We obj ect to the question,and if you. will let me

have the document I will state the grounds. We obj ect to

it first,as to what purports to come from Foster on the

16 I MR ROGERS: Did you read this partof the article that you

17 said mvhile ~o you read, headed ttl will convict Clarence

1S[ Darrow by lilY dietegraph. R.J" .Foster.· Did you read this

19
1 part of the article, ttJ!,verywora that passed between Harring­

20 I ton and Darrow ,vas reeo rded by the inst rument .8lld Bee 0 rd­

21 ing to Foster. ! the admission of these conversations,

22 as evidence ,will be a great factor in the case. tt Did you
I

23 i
I

24 I
I
I

25 I
26 ,

I



31~
I

1 ground IX> foundation has be en laid,showing that it is

2 from Foster. We obj ect to all that :r:;ert which is not in

3 quotations, 8S coming from some unknovm reporter on the

4 Los Angeles Ex:aminer,unknO\m to us. We object to all of it,
both Foster's and the unknown reporter's declarations,upon

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

the ground it is hearsay, incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial,a~d we object to any questions asked of this

witness upon the ground that the whole is absolutely im­

material and not cross-examination. It is not a statement

which can impeach this witness in any way. It doesn't even

purport to be a statement of this ,rltness, and it calls for

a conclusion of, the witness, as to what somebody elwe, to­
12

wit,ur Foster, an unknown reporter,may' have meant when
13

they said it,end on the further ground there is no founda­

tion laid to show that these words were ever said by any-

him if it was true, if he said it or heard it said.

THE COURT: Your objection is premature,in that this is

preliminary.

read it, anyway it is absolutely immaterial. I suppose

he did or suppose he didn't, what difference does it make,

absolutely immaterial. We submit the obj ectiob.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

body.

~lR ROGERS:

lrR FORD:

I asked him if he read it,only. I didn't ask

It is obj ectionable,even insofar as he may have

,THE COURr:' The objection is overruled. The q.lestion is,
25

A I think I did,..vour Honor.did you read the article.
26



there or not.

THE COURT: Obj ~tion overruled.

31

1
/8

the

and

A Please read the qu astion.

(Lastqu9stion read by the reporter.)

A I had no legal knowledge of it at the time.

?.'lR ROGERS: I am not asldng you for legal knowledge,sir;

I am asking you if you knew.

atteDtpt to a ssume something as evidence ,to-....vi t, this news­

paper article state.ment,which is not Fosterts.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR FORD: On the further ground the witness has answered

fully about his relations ,vith Foster, with the letter,

with the dictagraph, and with the stenographers; he has

answered he mew about -- that is he had no personal knovv-

ledge what the stenographers were doing,whether th~ were

MR FREDERICI\s: That is objected to because it is an

MR ROGERS: Did you mo\,., at the time you were having

conversation,that wery word that passed between you

Darrow was being taken doYm?

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



l3s 1 MR. FORD. If the Court please, we object to it on

317Sl
the

2 ~round that from the witness's answer it is apparent

3 anything tha t he may have k mwn on tba t subject would be

4 hearsay. That appears not only from his present answer,

5 "He had" no legal knowledge, II but from his former testimony

6 given last week which was to the effect that the conversa­

7 tion he had occurred with Mr. Lawler and what occurred

8 in the other room he didn't know, and all that occurred

9 in his room was there was a re ceiving dictagraph in his

10 room behind the bureau and he had arrangements with Mr.

11 Lawler in which Mr. Lawler expressed a desire to do certain

12 I things.

13 THE COUR T. 1 think you 'are right, that it has been gone

14 into, but counsel was compelled to go into it more or less

15 1 r,andicapped. He wanted the files of this court in which

16 1 he wanted to assist him in framing questions and for that

17 reason, to a limited extent, 1 don't think counsel will

18 abuse that, but to a limited extent he should be permitted

19 to renew that examination, for that reason the objection is

20 overruled.

21 MR. FORD. 1 wish to state, no further objections along

this line will be made. We will content ourselves with the
22

cbjection it is not cross-exarr-ination and when your Honor
23
24 Ithinks it has been gone into far enough you may rule. We

25 ,Will make our objection 80 YCur Honor can have a foundation

2G Ito rule and not·with the intention to interrupt the proceed-

ings.
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1 A What is the question?

2 (Las t que s tion read by the repor ter. )

3 A 1 did not know, but 1 suspected.

4 I MR. ROGERS. 1 will show you a photograph.

5 JAR. FORD' 1 will ask counsel to hold it 80 the jury wi1l

6 not see it until it has been exhibited to us.

7 MR. ROGERS. You may now lamp. 1 show you a photograph

8 headed, "Detectives using dictagraph, Offi.cial Photo in

9 Darrow case." 1 will ask you if you ever saw that before

10 or one just like it.

11 MR • FORD. Obj ec t l..{Jon the ground the docurnen t be ing

12
1

13

14

15

16

17

18
1

191

20

exhibited to the witness is fugitive evidence purely, no

issue in this case, incompetent, and no foundation laid

to show that it is--it is printed hearsay and has no higher

privilege than verbal hearsay-

MR • APPEL· Your Honor, we would like to know what he means

by fugitive, in view of the fact we didn't understand the

objection we like to avoid any objectionable matter in the

questions.

MR. FORD· 1 hand the counsel the dictionary.

MR. APPEL· 1 can't read alar ge book I ik e tha t, my time
21 I

22

23

is limited.

THE COUR T. Tb.e quee tion is, did he ever see this photo-

graph. Obj eo tion overruled.
24

'I A No, sir.
25
2G I MR. ROGERS. Q LO you khow of a photograph like that being

I
I
I



record.

not crose-examination ..

A 1 would not--Leo Longley?

A 1 saw that gentleman addressing the court, yes, sir.

MR. ROGERS. Q Did you ever see this man before, the

figure in the center in his shirt sleeves?

MR. FORD. We object to that on the ground it is incom­

petent, irrelevant and immaterial, and written hearsay,

haVing no higher privilege than verbal hearsay.

MR. ROGERS. 1 will take a ruling on that.

THE COURT· Objection overruled.

A Will you read the question now?

(Ques tion read. )

THE COUR"" Objection overruled.

MR. FORD. We object to the testimony of counsel ,as to

petent, irrelevant and immater'ial.

MR • ROGERS. Pr e1 iminary ..

THE COURT. Your question does not mean anything in the

MR .. ROGERS. Q 1 mem the figure on the left of the photo­

graph 1 am showing you? A No, sir.

Q Did you see him her e in the cour t room a f ew momen ts ago,

taken? A No, B ir •

Q Do you know who this person is here?

who he was on the ground counsel has not been sworn as a

Witness; object to it dm the furthe"r ground it is incom-

1m • FORD We object to that as irrelevant and immaterial,

1

p 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



asked was if 1 ever saw him in his shirt sleeves.

Q( Oh, you are unable to recognize him oWing to the

Ye~ sir, but 1 never saw him in his shirt sleeves

dishabille in which he appears?

- 3182 I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I

I
I

The question i

I

sir.No,A

Do you know that is Robert J. Foster?

No, sir.A

MR. nOGERS.

A

before.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 MR. FREDERICKS. And we object to that question asked if

9 he ever saw him in his shir t sleeves.

10 MR - ROGERS. Q Do you know whose picture that is, anyhow?

11 A yes, siro

12 Q Whose is it? A J.1r. Fos ter' s •

13 Q Do you know whose picture that is, on this side here,

14 on the right of the picture as it is presented to you?

15 A No, sir-

by means of the dictagraph?

MR. FORD. Th3.t is objected to on the ground it is incom-

Q Now, while you were conversing with Mr. Darrow in Room

437 did you know that these three gentlemen, :,1:. Longley,

Mr. Foster and Mr. Falloon were taking down the evidence

petent, irrelevant and imnBterial; the witness has been

fully examined upon that matter, and, further, that no

foundation has been laid showing that the ,Picture now

exhibited to the Witness on the stand is an accurate

Q Do you know Mr. Fallome the shor thand repor ter?

A No, sir.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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2

3

4

---------------'-----------,
3183 I

reproduction of any things that occurred during the time I
that the examination or that the dictagraph conversations

were being conduc ted in the other room, and it is my

impression that this picture was not taken at that time.

5 THE COURT. Objection overruled-

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

I



1 A Read the qaestion,now,please. (Question read.)

2 A No sir.

~
3184 I

I

3 Q UR ROGERS: Were you ever in the room in which these

4 gentlemen were taking dovm the convvrsation between you

5 and Darrow? A I don't know in what room they were.

6 Q Were you ever in the room which was supposed to be

7 the receiving room,that is to. say, the reporter's room,

8 where they were taking dovvn your conversation with Darrow?

9 A I do not know w~at room was supposed to be the rec eiv-

10 ing room.

11

12

13

14

Q Were you in Fost er l s room? A No sir.

Q Were you in the adj oining room? A No sir.

Q 4l8? A No sir.

Q Were you in any other -room in the Hayward exc ept the

15 one you occupied? A no sir.

16

17

18

19

It What was the number of your room? A 437.

Q Were you erler in 438? A No sir.

Q Or in any other room than 437,in the HaYWard? A No sir

Q When you met Mr Foster at the Hayward didn't you talk

20 about the dictagraphing with him? A No sir.

to it? A

Do yon know how it came about that a picture was taken

Was that after the dictagraphing had been finished?

My recollection is it was while it was going on.

.And do. you mean to say no referenc e whatever ,vas made

A No sir.

I h8V'e said so.

Wasn't the subj ect mentioned?

Q

Q

Q

Q

A

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 of Longley, the reporter ,Foster and Fallodn. headed, trDeteGM. I

2 t i v es using· dic t ag raphs, Offic ialpho t og raph in th e Darrow

3 case" ,do you knoV! hO\rr that came about?

4 MR FORD: We object to that as irrelevant and immaterial,

5 calling· for hearsay ,no foundation laid, showing the wit­

6 ness had any knowledge about it, mere speculation. on his

7 part.

8 THE COURT: The question is for his knowledge,does he know

9 these thihgs. Obj ection overruled.

10 ]~R FORD: I will vJ.i. thdraw the obj ec tion. A No sir.

11 llR roGERS: Were you Jresent when the dict~raph was removed

12 from your room? A No sir.

13

14

15

Q Was it still there when you left? A no sir.

Q Hoy, do you know? A Because I missed it.

Q When di d you look for it ,and find where it had been

16 taken? A Oh,a day or two before I left, a few days.

17 Q What occasioned you to look for it and find it absent?

18 A I didn't have to look, I could observe and see that

week or ten days.

I knew at the time, I kne\'1 it '!JaS there, was probably a

26 another you had a conversation with him? A Yes.

I dont knO'llv.

Were those conversations with ,.rr Darrow every day?

They ~re on consecutive days, if I r an ember r:i8htly.

On cons ecutive day-B. By that youm ean one day following

HoV! long was it there altogether? A

Q

A

it was gone.

Q

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



Q Did you lclok to see? A I observed and sa"v it.

Q What for? A I could see it was there,You know,I

didn't have to look, or go out of my way.

1

2

3

4

5

Q Was the dictagraph there every d~ when the

between you. and Darrow occurred? A It was.

31S5l
conversation1

6 Q Was there always someone in the other room, at the

7 other end of the dictegraph? A I don't know.

8 Q How did you know when to commence to talk with Darrow,

9 in order that it might be takenduwn by RObert ~.Foster,the

10 investigator for the Erectorh Association -- pardon me,

11

12

Chief Investigator for the National Erectors' Association --

and Leo Longley and Waldo Fallome?

13 MR FORD: We obj ect to that on the ground no foundation has

laid showing that Foster was the Chief Detective of the

National Erectors' Association,or Chief Investigator.

MR ROGERS: The official document headed "Official Photo-

No foundation

Here is a picture sho\ving it.

commit les~mageste and not give him his proper title.

THE COURT: Read the question.

been I aid,no evidence yet showing that they were the ones

who were taking it down at that time, that is, as far as

Foster was concerned.

graph" ,says Robert ~. Foster, Chief Investigator of the

National Erectors' Association. I would not for t he world

]JR ROGERS:

l!R FORD: Let me make my objection,please.
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1 lfR FORD: This document was prepared by some

2 unnamed newspaper man.

3187l
uhknO\m and

3 THE COURr: Mr Reporter,read the question. Vbm you get

4 that direction p~ no attention to what counsel says,from

5 that time on until the question is read.

6 MR FORD: I beg your pardon.

7 (Question read.)

8 THE COURT: Obj ection sustained.

9 UR roGERS: Did you talk with anyone else in your room,

10 while the dictagraPh was there, except Darrow?

11 A You mean ,of course ,in reference to the case?

12 Q No, anybody. A I spoke in casual conversations ,uth

13 1!r Cooney and l.fr Fi tzpatrick,who called on me.
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I·

Did you talk wi th them about dictagraphing Darrow?

No •A

Q Was the dictagraph on the side of the room next to the

bath room?

Q

to COllie to the room in the evening a good deal, 1 would

be safe in eayingthey; were there 6 or 8 tirree, they usual y

came ther e together. I
they I

Q Were 1\there on days when Darrow ViaS there? A Not at the I
time, they may have come in the evenings of these dates. I

I

Q They were witnesses for the prosecution here, Cooney

and Fitzpatrick. A 1 presume so.

Q Anyone else you talked to in the room while the dicta­

graph was there? A No, sir.

Q Did you participate in any trial--heat or trial of the

dictagraph? A No, sir.

Q How many times were Cooney and Fitzpatrick there or

ei ther one of them? A Oh, they came frequently. Used

. Q Did you report to them what Darrow scUd to youi' A No.

Q Did you mention Darrow in your converea tiona wi th them?

A 1 don,t remember; nothing in reference to the dicta­

graph, 1 am sure.

Q Do 1 understand you toeay you didn1t know where the

Wire went from the dictagraph? A That is correct.

Q Then you never made any inves~gation of it at all?

A That is correct.

Q Did you have a bath rOOID attached to your room?

AId id •

l5p 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



Q Did you see any wires come through the bath room?

A 1 did not.

door.

The bath room door, yes.1

2

3

4

5

A

Q 1 beg your pardon? A

31~

!
I

The same side as the bath room

6 Q Was there ever any oneiD the bath roonJ whi1e Darrow .

7

8

was in your room? A No, referring to the bath room con­

nected With my room, of course?

9 Q Yes. A No.

10 Q Or in a closet? A No.

11 Q Then you and he alone were in your room? A Yes.

12 Q Or any part of it or any appurtenance to it? A 1 don 1 t

13 know--

14Q Wardrobe, closet or bath room? A 1 don't understand

15

16

17

18

your question.
,

Q 1 mean to say, any appurtenance to your room, any closet,/

any bath room, any toilet, any wardrObe or whatnot connected

wi th your room, was there anybody in there when Darrowv!;lS

19 in your room"/ A No.

20 Q Now, when you saw this article headed, "1 will convict

21 Clarence Darrow by my dictagraph, R. J. Foster." did you

22 have a talk with Fos ter after that"/ A No.

23 Q Did you have a talk With the District Attorney about

24 th at? A No •

25 Q Was it ever men tioned? A Not With me, of course,

26 mean there--
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1 Q Yes, that is what 1 mean, did you see this picture or

2 article in the Evening Herald of saturday, March 2~, 19121

3 A Is that the picture you showed me when you were up

4
1

5

G

her e?

Q Yes. A No.

Q Never saw the article at all?

Q Were you here then? A No.

Q You were not here then?

A No.

9 THE COURT. He said, "No."

10 Q No. What else, now, did Mr, Darrow say at that dicta-

11 graph conversation of an incriminating nature or that

12 would tend to convict him, than you have already given us?

13 MR· FREDERICKS. We object to that as calling for a conclu-

14 sion of the wi tness, further, the matter has been gone

15 into fUlly on cross-examination.

16 THE COUR T. Objection overruled.

17 A 1 do notrrecall, With that limitation.

18 Q You have told us all that Mr. Darrow said of an incri-

19 minating or convicting nature then?
•20 k'R. FORD Just a morr:ent--if the Court please, we have no

21

22

23

24

25

objection as to them going into anything that was said

or everything that was said in that room, but whether it

is of an incriminating nature or not, we care notfor this

witness' s opinion, neither does the jury. While the

Witness is bound to tell us all the facts, his opinions and

26 conclusions are absolutely improper and irrelevant and



Mr. Darrow. By that we mean evidence of incriminating or

convicting nature, evidence against Mr. Darrow, therefore l 1

He came out here for the pur-Pardon me for not rising.

3191

incompetent testimony.

THE COUR T. Yes l 1 think iAr. Ford is r igb t about that.

tion sus tained.

MR • ROGERS. 1 beg your Honor f 8 pardon--he is a lai'IJyer and

be came out here for the purpose of securing evidence.

pose of securing evidence of Mr. Darrow. We start with

this premise: We are not dealing with an ordinary conversa­

tion, we are dealing With conversations that have a declared

purpose, namelYI the purpose of procuring evidence against
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1 If ,for instance, he says he came here to build a house, ,

2 one may say, "Did you build a house?" If he says he came

3 here to buy a horse, we may say, "Did you bUy the horse?lf

4 Now, anything that he says was his purpose or was his in-

5 tention,\Ye may inquire into. He came here to get evidence

6 agai~st Darrow. He says so. Now.he has told us some thinga.

7 I inquire of him if there is anythin,g elae of the evidence

8 which he came here to get,n~ely. i~criminating pr convict-

18 nea s oft he cons equenc e to 1'.rr Darro'w', be kind Enough to

9 ing evi dene e, for that i a what he came after, evidence

10 against Darrow, -- if there is anything else,hehas not

11 told us.

12 THE COURT: I do not think the opinion of the 'witness is

13 d'ompetent,there. Objection sustained.

14 1,rR ROGERS: You came here to get widence against Darrow.

15 Have you told us all yon got? A I think so. I don't know.

16 I have told you all I recall.

17

19

20

Oh • Well, now,be jdnd Enough, in vi ew of the a eri ous-

endeavor to recollect to the best 0 f your ability and tell

us if you have told us all that you got, that you came out

21 here for.

22 dJJR KEETCH: I submit I the cpestion has been answere ,your

23 Honor, a nuDlber of times.

THE COURT: .Obj ection overruled.24

25 toMR KEETCH: It certainly has been answered the last ~me.

26

1

THE COURT: Answer tile question.



1 A I am trying to think,your Honor.

A I don't recall of2 THE COURT: Yes,take your time.

3 anything else.

4 MR ROGERS: That is all.

5 MR KEETCH: Is that the end of your cross-examination?

6 MR ROGERS: Yes sir.

7 ~fR FREDERICKS: Now,may it please the Court ,it is ten

8 minutes after four ,and there are some things we wish to

9 consider before taking up the redirect examination of

10 the witness, and which we can take up in the morning.

11 THE COURT: Do you want to take en adj oumment at this time?

12 UR FREDEBICKS: I hate to ask for an adj ournment t and I g

13 hate to put a wi tness on and break in the middle of it.

14 MR ROGERS: I consent to that, I am awfully tired.

15 THE COURT: I think that in a case that is in the form as

in the

this,a matter that has run as lo~g . as this,that it is

reasonable to ask for an adjournment, and I shall assume

that counsel shall not impose on their privilege, but in
a case of this kind it is necessary. .

],ifR ROGERS: I return to your Honor the documents.,
20

18

19

16

17

Foster case.

26 ment was taken until 10 oeclock June 2?th, 1912J
.

,~ if' "

THE COURT: Ur Clerk, take these documents, and enter them

as the original files in that case, as a substitute of

the origin~l files in that case.

eHere ,after the usual romoni tion to the jur:>r an adj ourh-
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